#### CONFIDENTIAL

### **ViiV Healthcare SAFETY Advisory**

**Date:** 23 May 2018

Dear Healthcare Professional

Title: <u>Tivicay (dolutegravir)</u>: neural tube defects reported in Tsepamo <u>Study, Botswana.</u>

### **Key Messages**

ViiV Healthcare would like to inform you of a potential safety issue which has been brought to our attention by the Principal Investigator of the above study conducted in Botswana. The potential safety issue is related to Neural Tube Defect (NTD) cases in infants born to women with exposure to dolutegravir-containing regimens *at the time of conception* identified from a preliminary unscheduled analysis of the Tsepamo study (4 NTD cases out of 426 pregnancies on dolutegravir). This represents an incidence of about 0.9% with an expected background rate of about 0.1%.

In the same study, no infant born to a woman who started dolutegravir *during pregnancy* had a neural tube defect (N=0/2824).

While this safety signal is being evaluated, ViiV Healthcare recommends the following:

- In women of child bearing potential (WOCBP) pregnancy testing should be performed before initiation of treatment.
- WOCBP who are taking dolutegravir should avoid getting pregnant and should use effective contraception throughout treatment.
- In WOCBP who are actively seeking to become pregnant, it is recommended to avoid dolutegravir, unless a suitable alternative treatment option is not available.
- If a woman becomes pregnant while taking dolutegravir and the pregnancy is confirmed in the first trimester, it is recommended to switch to an alternative regimen unless there is not a suitable alternative treatment option available.
- Dolutegravir should be used during pregnancy only if the expected benefit justifies the potential risk to the fetus.

#### CONFIDENTIAL

### **Supporting information**

- The Tsepamo study is a birth outcomes surveillance study which is ongoing and further data will be captured during the ongoing surveillance. This information will help to further inform about the safety of dolutegravir during pregnancy. It is anticipated that birth outcomes from at least another 600 women who have already become pregnant and were on dolutegravir from prior to conception, will be captured in the ongoing surveillance over the next 9 months (May 2018 to February 2019).
- Dolutegravir was tested in a complete package of reproductive toxicology studies, including embryofetal development studies, and no relevant findings were identified.
- Although there is limited experience with the use of dolutegravir in pregnancy, the data analysed to date from all sources including Antiretroviral Pregnancy Registry (APR), clinical trials and postmarketing use has not indicated a similar potential safety issue. There is one additional case of NTD reported spontaneously from Namibia.
- There are no specific congenital abnormality signals (including NTD) from other sources when dolutegravir is started during pregnancy.

### **Information on Neural Tube Defects**

• The neural tube is the foundation of the spinal cord, brain and the bone and tissues that surround it. Neural tube defects occur when the neural tube fails to completely form; this formation takes place between 0 and 28 days after conception. Neural tube defects may be related to factors such as folate deficiency, certain medications, maternal obesity, diabetes or family history.

# **Action Being Taken by ViiV Healthcare**

- ViiV Healthcare will continue evaluating the full body of data for dolutegravir in pregnancy, and explore further options for data generation. This includes evaluating several different databases to determine if other cases have been observed.
- ViiV Healthcare will also continue collaborating with the study investigators and key stakeholders including Regulatory Agencies.
- The product information of TIVICAY will be updated accordingly and further information will be communicated as appropriate.

#### **CONFIDENTIAL**

## **Current Label**

The current labelling for dolutegravir containing products states:

Tivicay:

Use in pregnancy (Category B1)

There are no adequate and well-controlled studies of **TIVICAY** in pregnant women. The effect of TIVICAY on human pregnancy is unknown. In reproductive toxicity studies in animals, dolutegravir was shown to cross the placenta. TIVICAY should be used during pregnancy only if the expected benefit justifies the potential risk to the fetus.

**Dr Fraser Drummond** MBChB MRCA DA (UK) FAChSHM

Medical Director Australasia

 ${f Dr}$   ${f James}$   ${f Lello}$   ${f BHB}$   ${f MBChB}$   ${f DCH}$ 

FRNZCGP

New Zealand Medical Director